Supplementary Appendix to: Peters C, Dalle J-H, Locatelli F. et al. Total Body Irradiation or Chemotherapy Conditioning in Childhood ALL: A Multinational, Randomised, Non-Inferiority Phase 3 Study.

This appendix has been provided by the authors to give readers additional information about their work.

Contents

1. Study Sponsorship and Oversight
2. List of Investigators
3. Study Design
4. Plain Language Summary7
5. Statistical Methodology According to the Statistical Analysis Plan
Figure S1. Post-relapse Overall Survival According to Conditioning Regimen (Modified As-Treated Population)
Figure S2. GvHD-Free, Relapse-Free Survival According to Conditioning Regimen (ITT population)
Table S1. Number of Randomised Patients According to Country and Year14
Table S2. Key Endpoints by Remission Status. 15
Table S3. Key Endpoints in Patients Transplanted in CR2 Stratified by Relapse Within Versus Beyond 18 Months of Diagnosis. 17
Table S4. Toxicity to Day 100 by Conditioning Regimen and Grade in the Modified As-Treated Population.
Table S5. Causes of Death Unrelated to Relapse. 21
Table S6. Incidence of Acute GvHD by Grade, Conditioning Regimen, and Donor Type
Table S7. Univariate evaluation of risk factors
Table S8. Sub-group Analyses of Overall Survival by Risk Factor and Conditioning Regimen (ITT Population)
Table S9. Sub-group Analysis of Event-Free Survival by Risk Factor and Conditioning Regimen (ITT Population)
References

1. Study Sponsorship and Oversight

International Sponsor

St. Anna Kinderkrebsforschung Vienna, Austria represented by Wolfgang Holter

International Study Chair

Christina Peters St. Anna Kinderspital Vienna, Austria

Study Management and Central Data Office

Barbara Kristufek & Tijana Frank St. Anna Kinderkrebsforschung Vienna, Austria

Data and Safety Monitoring Committee

Andrea Bacigalupo Ospedale San Martino, Genova, Italy

Elaine Gluckman Hospital St. Louis, Paris, France

Paola de Lorenzo University of Milano-Bicocca, Italy

Michael Pulsipher University of Utah School of Medicine Salt Lake City, Utah, USA

International Steering Committee

Peter Bader, Germany Adriana Balduzzi, Italy Jean-Hugues Dalle, France Tayfun Güngör, Switzerland Marianne Ifversen, Denmark Arjan Lankester, Netherlands Franco Locatelli, Italy Roland Meisel, Germany Christina Peters, Austria Ulrike Poetschger, Austria Martin Schrappe, Germany Petr Sedlacek, Czech Republic Kirk Schultz, Canada Peter Shaw, Australia Arend von Stackelberg, Germany Jerry Stein, Israel Tony Truong, Canada Isaak Yaniv, Israel

2. List of Investigators

Centre	Responsible physician	Institution
Argentina		
I a Plata	Sergio Gomez*	Hospital Sor Maria Ludovica
LuThutu	Sergio Gomez	La Plata Argentina
Buenos Aires	Raquel Staciuk	Hospital de Pediatría "Juan P. Garrahan"
Duchos Miles	Raquel Staeluk	Buenos Aires Argentina
Australia		Duchos Mics, Mgentina
Australia Drichono	Chris Freezr	Lady Cilente Children's Hospital
DI ISDalle	Chills Plaser	Lady Chento Chindren's Hospital
Malhauma	Eronacica Mashinoud	South Disoane, Australia
Melbourne	Francoise Mechinaud	Viotorio Australia
Denth	Characti Damas alterna faran	Victoria, Australia
Perth	Shanti Ramachandran	Princess Margaret Hospital for Children
G 1	D (C1 *	
Sydney	Peter Shaw*	The Children's Hospital at Westmead
G 1		Sydney, Australia
Sydney	Tracey O'Brien	Sydney Children's Hospital
		Sydney, Australia
Austria		
Graz	Wolfgang Schwinger, Christian	Univ. Klinik für Kinder- und Jugendheilkunde
	Urban, Herwig Lackner	Graz, Austria
Innsbruck	Gabriele Kropshofer, Bernhard	Universitätsklinik für Kinder- und Jugendheilkunde
	Meister	Innsbruck, Austria
Vienna	Herbert Pichler*, Anita	St. Anna Kinderspital
	Lawitschka, Natascha	Wien, Austria
	Zuberovskaya, Wolfgang	
	Holter	
Belarus		
Minsk	Olga Aleinikova*	Belarusian Research Center for Pediatric Oncology,
	Dimitry Prudnikov	Hematology and Immunology
		Minsk, Belarus
Canada		
Calgary	Tony Truong*	Alberta Children's Hospital
		Calgary, Alberta, Canada
Manitoba	Geoff Cuvelier	CancerCare Manitoba/University of Manitoba
		Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada
Montréal	David Mitchell	Montréal Children's Hospital
		Montréal, Quebec, Canada
Montréal	Henrique Bittencourt	CHU Sainte-Justine
		Montréal, Quebec, Canada
Toronto	Donna Wall	Hospital for Sick Children
		Toronto, Ontario, Canada
Vancouver	Kirk Schultz, Jeffery Davis	BC Children's Hospital
		Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada
Czech Republic		
Prague	Petr Sedlacek*,	Hospital Motol, Charles University Motol Prague,
		Praha, Czech Republic
Denmark		
Copenhagen	Marianne Ifversen*, Carsten	Rigshospitalet
	Heilmann	Copenhagen, Denmark
Finland		
Helsinki	Kim Vettenranta*	Hospital for Children and Adolescents
		Helsinki, Finland
France		
Bordeaux	Charlotte Jubert	CHU Bordeaux
		Bordeaux, France

Centre	Responsible physician	Institution			
Clermont	Justyna Kanold	CHU Clermont-Ferrand			
Ferrand	5	Clermont Ferrand, France			
Grenoble	Dominique Plantaz	CHU Grenoble – Clinique Universitaire de Pédiatrie			
	1	Grenoble, France			
Lille	Bénédicte Bruno	CHRU Lille			
		Lille, France			
Lyon	Yves Bertrand	IHOP Lyon			
		Lyon, France			
Marseille	Gérard Michel	La Timone / APHM Marseille			
		Marseille, France			
Montpellier	Anne Sirvent	Arnaud de Villeneuve CHU Montpellier			
_		Montpellier, France			
Nancy	Cécile Pochon	CHU Nancy			
		Nancy, France			
Nantes	Fanny Rialland	CHU Nantes			
		Hopital de la mère et de l'enfant			
		Nantes, France			
Paris	Jean-Hugues Dalle*	Hôpital Robert Debré / Paris			
		Paris, France			
Rennes	Virginie Gandemer	CHRU Rennes			
		Rennes, France			
Rouen	Pascale Schneider	CHU de Rouen			
		Rouen, France			
Strasbourg	Catherine Paillard	CHU Strasbourg			
		Strasbourg, France			
Germany	1				
Aachen	Udo Kontny, Olga Moser	Uniklinik RWTH Aachen			
.		Aachen, Germany			
Berlin	Hedwig Deubzer, Anette	Charité Campus Virchow-Klinikum			
	Künkele	Berlin, Germany			
Bonn	Dagmar Dilloo, Cathy	Universitätsklinikum Bonn			
D"	Scholtes	Bonn, Germany			
Dusseldori	Koland Meisel, Friedneim	Düsseldorf Cormony			
Enlangan	Deniel Steehel Merkus	Universitätelelinikum Erlengen			
Erlangen	Motzlor	Erlangen Germany			
Fsson	Oliver Basu Dirk Reinhardt	Universitätsklinikum Essen			
1255011	Onver Basu, Dirk Kenmarut	Essen Germany			
Frankfurt	Peter Bader* Jan Sörensen	Klinik für Kinderheilkunde III			
r i ankiui t	Andrea Jarisch	Frankfurt am Main Germany			
Freihurg	Brigitte Strahm Charlotte	Universitätsklinikum Freiburg			
Trobulg	Niemever	Freiburg, Germany			
Ciaßon	Christing Mauz Körholz	Universitötsklinikum Gießen			
Glebell	Diotor Körholz	Gioßon, Gormany			
Craifswald	Holger Lobde Karoline Ehlert	Uniklinik Universitätsmedizin Greifswald			
Grenswalu	Horger Londe, Karonne Emert	Greifswald Germany			
Halle (Saale)	Toralf Bernig, Kaspar Kiihnöl	Klinikum der Med Fakultät der Martin-Luther-			
Hane (Baale)	Toran Denng, Raspar Ramor	Universität Halle-			
		Halle, Germany			
Hamburg	Johanna Schrum, Ingo Müller	Universitätsklinikum Hamburg-Eppendorf			
		Hamburg, Germany			
Hannover	Martin Sauer, Britta Maecker-	Med. Hochschule Hannover			
	Kohlhoff	Hannover, Germany			
Heidelberg	Johann Greil. Joachim Kunz	Universitätskinderklinik			
		Heidelberg, Germany			
Jena	Bernd Gruhn, Karim	Uniklinik, Klinik für Kinder- und Jugendmedizin			
	Kentouche	Jena, Germany			

Centre	Responsible physician	Institution				
Kiel	Gunnar Cario, Alexander	Universitätsklinikum Kiel				
	Claviez	Kiel Germany				
Leinzia	Holger Christiansen Sven	Uniklinik Universitätsmedizin Leinzig				
Leipzig	Kühl	Lainzia Cormony				
M#arahaa		Zipil a table in the interview Mineter				
Munchen-	Michael Albert, Tobias	Kinnkum der Universität Munchen				
Hauner	Feuchtinger	Munchen, Germany				
München-	Irene Teichert-Lüttichau,	Städt. Krankenhaus München Schwabing				
Schwabing	Angela Wawer	München, Germany				
Münster	Claudia Rössig, Birgit	Universitätsklinikum Münster				
	Burkhardt	Münster, Germany				
Regensburg	Selim Corbacioglu, Jürgen Föll	Universitätsklinikum Regensburg				
		Regensburg, Germany				
Tübingen	Peter Lang, Michaela Döring	UnivKlinik für Kinderheilkunde und Jugendmedizin				
8	6,	Tübingen, Germany				
Illm	Ansgar Schulz Manfred Hönig	Universitätskinderklinik Ulm				
Chin	inisgui Schulz, Mainrea Hong	Ulm Germany				
Wiinzhung	Daul Sablagal	Universitätskinderklinik Würzburg				
wurzburg	Faul Schlegel Matthiag Exmish	Wijerburg, Company				
7 1	Maumas Eyricii	wurzburg, Germany				
Israel						
Haifa	Irina Zaidman	Rambam Medical Center				
		Haifa, Israel				
Petach-Tikva	Jerry Stein*,	Schneider Children's Medical Center of Israel				
		Petach-Tikva, Israel				
Tel-Aviv	Ronit Elhasid	Dana Children's Hospital				
		Tel Aviv, Israel				
Italy	·					
Bologna	Prete Arcangelo	Azienda Ospedaliero-Universitaria Policlinico S.				
8		Orsola-Malpighi di Bologna				
		Bologna Italy				
Firenze	Veronica Tintori	Ospedale Mayer di Firenze				
THCHZC	veromea rintori	Firenze Italy				
Conorro	Edoardo Lonino	Interize, Italy				
Genova	Edoardo Lanino	Concern Italia				
	4.1.' D.11. '	Genova, Italy				
Monza	Adriana Balduzzi	Clinica Pediatrica Università degli Studi di Milano				
		Bicocca, Fondazione MBBM / ASST Monza, Ospedale				
		San Gerardo				
		Monza, Italy				
Padova	Giuseppe Basso, Alessandra	Università di Padova, Azienda Ospedaliera di Padova				
	Biffi	Padova, Italy				
Pavia	Marco Zecca	Fondazione IRCCS Policlinico San Matteo Pavia				
		Pavia, Italy				
Pisa	Gabriella Casazza	Azienda Ospedaliero Universitaria Pisana				
		Pisa. Italy				
Roma	Franco Locatelli*	Ospedale Pediatrico Bambino Gesù				
Itomu	Truneo Docutom	Roma Italy				
Torino	Franca Fagioli	Ospedale Infantile Regina Margherita				
101110	Tranca Tagion	Torino Italy				
Nonali	England Deals Transform	A ODN Santahana Dawiling				
	Francesco Paolo Tambaro	AUKIN SANIODONO PAUSINPON				
(Not initiated		Napoli, Italy				
yet)						
Malaysia						
Kuala Lumpur	Hany Ariffin*	University of Malaya				
		Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia				

Norway		
Oslo	Jochen Buechner*, Charlotte	Oslo University Hospital Rikshospitalet
	Alme	Oslo, Norway
Netherlands		
Leiden	Arjan Lankester	Leiden University Medical Center
	2	Leiden, Netherlands
Utrecht	Marc Bierings*	Princess Máxima Center for Pediatric Oncology
	6	Utrecht, Netherlands
New Zealand		
Auckland	Lochie Teague*	Starship Children's Hospital
	C	Auckland, New Zealand
Saudi Arabia		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Rivadh	Mohammed Essa*	King Abdullah Specialist Children's Hospital
		Rivadh. Saudi Arabia
Slovakia		
Braticlava	Peter Svec* Sabina Sufliarska	Pediatric University Teaching Hospital
Diatistava	Julia Horakova	Bratislava Slovakia
	Julia Horakova	Dialislava, Slovakia
Snain		
Barcelona	Cristina Díaz de Heredia*	Hospital Vall d'Hebron
Durceiona	Cristina Diaz de Heredia	Barcelona, Spain
Barcelona	Luisa Sisini	Hospital Santa Creu i Sant Pau
Durceiona	Luisu bisini	Barcelona Spain
Málaga	Antonia Pascual	Hospital Materno Infantil de Málaga
	intoniu i usouui	Málaga, Spain
El Palmar	Iosé Luis Fuster	Hospital Virgen de la Arrixaca
		El Parmar, Spain
Oviedo	Pilar Palomo	Hospital Universitario Central de Asturias
0 11000		Oviedo. Spain
Sweden		
Göteborg	Ceciilia Langenskiold	Oueen Silvia Children's Hospital
(Gothenburg)	6	Göteborg. Sweden
Lund	Jacek Toporski*, Dominik	Skåne University Hospital
	Turkiewicz,	Lund, Sweden
Stockholm	Jacek Winiarski	Karolinska University Hospital
		Stockholm, Sweden
Uppsala	Natalia Jackmann	University Children's Hospital
		Uppsala, Sweden
Switzerland		
Basel	Nicolas Von der Weid	Universitäts-Kinderspital beider Basel (UKBB)
		Basel, Switzerland
Geneva	Marc Ansari	HUG Hôpitaux Universitaire de Genève
		Geneva. Switzerland
Zürich	Tayfun Güngör*	Universitäts-Kinderspital
	Ulrike Zeilhofer	Zürich, Switzerlan
	Jean Pierre Bourguin	
		1

*National Coordinators (the National Coordinator for Austria was initially Wolfgang Holter, but at the time of writing was Herbert Pichler).

3. Study Design

For details of the study design, including randomisation, frontline protocols used by randomising countries, inclusion criteria, and stopping rules, please see the Protocol published on the <u>CCRI website</u>.

4. Plain Language Summary

Acute lymphoblastic leukaemia and its treatment

Our blood contains lots of different cells. These blood cells do important jobs such as carrying oxygen around the body (red blood cells), fighting infections (lymphocytes and other white blood cells), and forming a blood clot if a blood vessel is injured (platelets).

Very rarely, cells from which lymphocytes are made in the bone marrow can turn cancerous. This causes acute lymphoblastic leukaemia (ALL). Lots of leukaemia cells are produced, while too few healthy blood cells are made (Picture 1). This can make a person ill very quickly. About half of all people diagnosed with ALL are children.



Most patients with ALL are cured with medicines that kill the cancer cells (chemotherapy). However, if these medicines do not destroy all the cancer cells, the leukaemia can come back. This is called relapse. People who have a relapse need additional therapy.

One of the main treatments for relapsed ALL involves healthy stem cells being taken from a donor and transferred into the person with ALL. This is called a haematopoietic stem cell transplant. The transplanted stem cells settle in the recipient's bone marrow, where they produce healthy blood cells.

Before a person can receive a stem cell transplant, they need treatment to kill the leukaemia cells and reduce their immune system. This is called 'conditioning therapy' (see Picture 2). A common conditioning therapy is radiation given to the whole body, known as total body irradiation (TBI). Alternatively, chemotherapy can be used.

When TBI is given to children it can cause life-long problems. These include not growing as much as usual, having learning problems, and the ovaries in girls and testicles in boys not growing fully, which can affect fertility. TBI can also cause new cancers to develop.

Chemotherapy has side effects too. Some chemotherapies can affect fertility. Chemotherapy can also cause new cancers to develop, but less commonly than TBI does.



Introduction to the FORUM study

We conducted the FORUM study to see whether a mixture of chemotherapy drugs could be used instead of TBI for conditioning therapy in children, adolescents, and young people with ALL. We wanted to do this so that, in the future, people surviving ALL might have fewer long-term problems from their leukaemia treatment.

88 hospitals across the world took part in our trial. Participants were under 18 years old when they were diagnosed with ALL and had their stem cell transplant aged between 4 and 21 years. Before their transplant, 212 participants in the trial were assigned to receive TBI plus a chemotherapy drug called etoposide. 201 participants were assigned to receive a mixture of chemotherapy drugs (fludarabine, thiotepa, and either busulfan or treosulfan) but no TBI.

Results of the FORUM study

The following results are based on the chance of particular outcomes predicted by our statistical analysis (maths). We show these results in simple numbers in Picture 3.

In the group allocated TBI, about 12% of participants had a relapse of their ALL within 2 years, i.e. their cancer came back. In the group allocated chemotherapy, about 33% of participants had a relapse of their ALL within 2 years. So, the chance of having a relapse was over twice as high for participants allocated chemotherapy rather than TBI. About 91% of participants allocated TBI were alive 2 years after transplant, but 9% had died. In contrast, in the group allocated chemotherapy, about 75% of participants were alive 2 years after transplant, and 25% had died. About 2% of participants receiving TBI versus 9% receiving chemotherapy died from a side effect of their transplant therapy.

Our statistical analysis tells us that these differences are very unlikely to be due to chance alone. Because chemotherapy was proving to be less effective than TBI, we stopped assigning new participants to chemotherapy. Participants will now be given chemotherapy in our trial only if they cannot have, or choose not to have, TBI.

We recommend that children, adolescents, and young people with ALL who are going to have a haematopoietic stem cell transplant receive conditioning therapy with TBI and etoposide rather than the mixture of chemotherapy drugs that we tested.



5. Statistical Methodology According to the Statistical Analysis Plan

The statistical analysis followed a prespecified statistical analysis plan that was a part of the protocol (see protocol pages 57–63).

Randomisation

Patients were randomly assigned in a 1:1 ratio to either TBI plus etoposide or to a chemo-conditioning regimen consisting of fludarabine and thiotepa plus either busulfan or treosulfan. The choice of busulfan or treosulfan was determined by each national coordinator in discussion with study centres. The random allocation sequence was prepared by the study statisticians. Randomisation used a web-based study site and the allocation sequence that was concealed from the researcher enrolling, assessing participants, and coordinating the trial. Randomisation was performed with random blocks of 2, 4, 6, and 8 patients stratified by country, donor type and complete remission (CR1, CR2, or >CR2).

Analysis sets

There is ongoing debate in the methodological literature and no clear agreement on an appropriate analysis set for non-inferiority studies. Although a per-protocol population has been more commonly used than an intentionto-treat (ITT) population for previous non-inferiority studies, we determined that an ITT population was more suitable for primary analysis in the FORUM trial. The rationale for using a per-protocol population is that it may more closely follow the scientific hypothesis, as deviations from the protocol might make the outcomes for the treatment groups more similar. However, recently it has been shown that use of ITT analyses does not systematically lead to smaller estimates. In FORUM, it has been anticipated that patients who do not comply with the randomised arm are a selected sub-sample with respect to their risk profile: patients randomised to TBI but who received chemo-conditioning and patients randomised to chemo-conditioning but who received TBI are unlikely to be comparable. It can be anticipated that patients who are randomised to TBI yet who received chemo-conditioning are selected patients with a lower risk of events, while patients randomised to chemoconditioning yet who received TBI are selected towards higher risk. In such a setting, a per-protocol analysis would favour chemo-conditioning. To mitigate this risk, in the FORUM study both ITT and modified as-treated populations were used for analyses. The ITT analysis was prospectively defined as primary and the modified astreated analysis as secondary. Results with both analysis populations are shown in the paper and in this supplementary appendix. Results of the two approaches are superimposable, which strengthens our conclusion.

In the ITT analysis, all eligible randomised patients were analysed according to their randomised arm. Randomisation errors, i.e. patients who were erroneously randomised although not eligible (i.e. one mismatched donor, two patients not in CR, and one patient for whom informed consent was not received) were excluded from the ITT analysis (see manuscript Figure 1). A secondary analysis using the modified as-treated principle was performed (see manuscript Figure 1). The modified as-treated analysis excluded patients who were randomised to the TBI arm but who received chemo-conditioning and, likewise, excluded patients randomised to the chemo-conditioning arm but who received TBI. For the modified as-treated analysis, patients with TBI, treosulfan- and busulfan-based conditioning were separately evaluated.

Endpoints

The primary endpoint was overall survival (OS) calculated from the date of randomisation. Death from any cause was considered an event. Patients lost to follow-up without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.

Secondary efficacy endpoints are as follows:

- Event-free survival (EFS): this was calculated from the date of randomisation to the date of disease progression or relapse, secondary neoplasm, and death from any cause. Patients without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- Cumulative incidence of relapse/progression: this was estimated using the competing events of death without relapse/progression and secondary neoplasm. Patients without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- Treatment-related mortality (TRM): competing events were relapse/progression and secondary malignancies. Patients lost to follow-up without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- Cumulative incidence of disease-related mortality: competing events were deaths not related to the disease. Patients lost to follow-up without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- Cumulative incidence of neoplasm: competing events were deaths without neoplasm. Patients lost to follow-up without an event were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- The cumulative incidence of chronic graft-versus-host disease (GvHD): this was estimated using the competing events of death without chronic GvHD and relapse. Survivors without chronic GvHD and relapse were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- GvHD-free, relapse-free survival: this was calculated from date of randomisation to the first event. Acute GvHD grade III or IV was considered an event at day 0. Furthermore, chronic GvHD, relapse/progression and death from any cause were considered an event. Survivors without events were censored at the date of their last follow-up evaluation.
- Acute GvHD and toxicity at day 100.

Power

The study was designed as non-inferiority study with a non-inferiority margin of 8%. With a sample size of 1000 patients randomised in 5 years, a minimum follow-up of 2 years and a one-sided alpha of 5%, a power of 80% was calculated. The 8% margin was a result of several simulation models to anticipate the probability to equalise (outweigh) the possible late benefits of fewer secondary malignancies against a higher relapse incidence in the chemo-conditioning arms. However, it turned out that twice as much patients died due to relapse in the chemo-conditioning arm; thus, this margin is no longer relevant.

The primary analysis of the primary endpoint was planned using a one-sided confidence interval for the difference of the Kaplan-Meier estimate of the 4-year OS.¹ Efficacy in the chemo-conditioning arm would have been considered equal to that of the TBI arm if the lower limit of this confidence interval was less than 8% in both ITT and as-treated analyses. A total recruitment of 1000 patients over 5 years was anticipated. The final analysis was planned 2 years after the last randomisation. According to the previous experience from the ALL-SZT 2003 and ALL-SCT International studies,^{2,3} a 4-year OS in the control arm (i.e., with TBI) of 70% was anticipated. Monte-Carlo simulations show that, with a non-inferiority margin of about 8%, the power will be above 80% (given a one-sided alpha of 5%). (Note that due to early trial termination, follow-up was too short at the time of the current data analysis to conduct this primary analysis of 4-year OS.)

Interim monitoring was performed annually as pre-specified in the protocol (see below stopping rules). The impact of the stopping rule on the power of the study was explored in a simulation study. Our simulation study confirmed that, with the stopping rules, the power was somewhat lower as compared with a study without such stopping rules. However, power remained above 80% in all investigated scenarios. For the design of the study, the sample size and non-inferiority margin were chosen that led to a statistical power above 80%, taking into account the impact of stopping rules.

Stopping rules

The study was monitored by an annual report to the Independent Data Monitoring Committee (IDMC). It was planned that the study would be stopped if overall survival in the chemo-conditioning arm was significantly worse than overall survival in the TBI arm at a 5% level using log-rank test. For the randomised question, early stopping rules were implemented to retain the null hypotheses – it was planned that the study would be stopped if the chemo-conditioning arm was significantly worse than the TBI arm at a 5% level using a log-rank test. Monitoring reports were planned after 200 patients were recruited and then annually thereafter until recruitment was completed. This stopping rule was to be implemented for safety reasons only (i.e., when the chemo-conditioning arm was worse) and, accordingly, the approach reduced both the type I error rate and power. Note that stopping in favour of the chemo-conditioning arm was not implemented and accordingly no type-I error adjustment was necessary. Monte-Carlo simulations show that the impact of this stopping rule on power is small. This stopping rule was breached in December 2018; randomisation was suspended while confirmatory analyses were conducted and randomisation was stopped in March 2019 (after 413 eligible patients had been randomised).

A similar approach to that described above was planned to compare OS in the two chemo-conditioning strata. A stopping rule based on a log-rank test using a 10% significance level was implemented. Simulation studies were performed to investigate the impact of this approach on type-I error rates and power. This stopping rule was not breached.

Furthermore, TRM was reviewed bi-annually. If the 6-month TRM rate in one arm or strata exceeded 15%, the information would be forward to the IDMC. This stopping rule was not breached.

Statistical analysis

OS, EFS, and GvHD-free, relapse-free survival were estimated with Kaplan-Meier methodology² and compared using the log-rank test.³ Two-year estimates and 95% confidence intervals using log transformation are given in the manuscript.¹ The significance level was 0.05 for all analyses. For the ITT analysis, patients were compared by randomised arm. For the modified as-treated analysis evaluating TBI conditioning and the two chemo-conditioning strata separately, pairwise comparisons were performed provided that the global p value was significant.

Univariate evaluation of risk factors used the same approach. Risk factors evaluated were sex, age, immunophenotype, minimal residual disease (MRD) pre-HSCT, donor type, remission status, and type and time of first relapse in patients in CR2. For multivariable analyses, Cox regression⁴ was used to explore the impact of these risk factors and conditioning type on OS and EFS. In the presence of monotone likelihoods (i.e., absence of events in one subgroup), Firth correction was used.⁵ To explore whether one of these risk factors was an effect modifier, subgroup analyses were performed. Cox regression was used to formally test these interactions. The proportions of patients in each study arm with grade III or IV acute GvHD and grade 3 or 4 adverse events at day 100 were compared using a chi-squared test.

The cumulative incidences of relapse, TRM, and chronic GvHD were estimated accounting for competing events and compared using a Gray's test.⁶ The multivariable evaluation of relapse incidence used the characteristics specified above for other multivariable analyses. The model of Fine and Gray was used.⁷

Median follow-up was estimated using the inverse Kaplan-Meier method.⁸





	Patients	Deaths	1-year OS	2-year OS	p value
TBI	23	12	0.49 (0.25-0.69)	0.26 (0.06-0.53)	0.41
Busulfan	23	15	0.43 (0.21-0.64)	0.16 (0.03-0.38)	
Treosulfan	24	11	0.54 (0.30-0.73)	0.36 (0.13-0.60)	

OS analysis used Kaplan-Meier methodology and the log-rank test. BU = busulfan, CHC = chemo-conditioning, OS = overall survival, and TBI = total body irradiation.





GvHD-free, relapse-free survival was estimated with Kaplan-Meier methodology and compared using the log-rank test. Two-year estimates and 95% CIs using log transformation are given. Events were aGvHD Grade III or IV, extensive cGvHD, relapse and death. Death before day 100 and aGvHD is an event at the start of the interval. BU = busulfan, CHC = chemo-conditioning, GRFS = GvHD-free, relapse-free survival, GvHD = graft-versus-host disease, and TBI = total body irradiation.

Country*	Chemo-conditioning	Total	Year of Randomisation					
			2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Germany	Treosulfan	152	0	12	38	34	25	43
France	Busulfan	108	0	0	21	27	28	32
Italy	Busulfan	33	0	0	0	6	13	14
Austria	Treosulfan	18	3	4	2	1	3	5
Czech Republic	Busulfan	14	0	2	0	2	5	5
Norway	Busulfan	14	0	2	6	0	4	2
Australia + New Zealand	Busulfan	12	0	0	4	3	3	2
Denmark	Busulfan	12	0	0	4	3	0	5
Argentina	Busulfan	10	0	0	0	0	1	9
Finland	Treosulfan	10	0	0	4	4	1	1
Slovakia	Treosulfan	9	0	3	0	2	2	2
Belarus	Treosulfan	5	0	0	0	0	0	5
Israel	Busulfan	5	0	1	1	1	0	2
Switzerland	Busulfan	4	0	0	1	1	1	1
Sweden	Busulfan	4	0	0	0	1	2	1
Canada	Busulfan	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
Spain	Busulfan	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Total		413	3	24	81	85	88	132

Table S1. Number of Randomised Patients According to Country and Year.

*Sites in Malaysia, The Netherlands, and Saudi Arabia did not randomise patients into this part of the study.

Table S2. Key Endpoints by Remission Status.

	Intention-to-treat population			Modified as-treated population		
	TBI	СНС	p value	TBI	СНС	p value
CR1						
Patients	118	106		110	102	
Death						
Deaths	9	22		9	22	
2-year OS (95% CI)	0.91 (0.83–0.95)	0.79 (0.68–0.86)	0.004	0.90 (0.81-0.95)	0.78 (0.67–0.85)	0.006
Any failure						
Relapse, second malignancy, or death/patients	11	31/		10	30	
2-year EFS (95% CI)	0.91 (0.83–0.95)	0.67 (0.56-0.76)	< 0.001	0.91 (0.83–0.96)	0.67 (0.56–0.76)	<0.001
Relapse						
Relapses/patients	8/118	23/106		7	22	
2-year CIR (95% CI)	0.07 (0.03–0.13)	0.24 (0.16–0.33)	0.001	0.07 (0.03–0.13)	0.24 (0.15–0.33)	0.002
Non-leukaemia death						
Death in CR/patients	3/118	8/106		3	8/106	
2-year TRM (95% CI)	0.02 (<0.01-0.06)	0.09 (0.04–0.16)	0.078	0.02 (<0.01-0.13)	0.09 (0.04–0.17)	0.091
CR2						
Patients	85	79		81	76	
Death						
Deaths	9	22		9	19	
2-year OS (95% CI)	0.91 (0.82–0.69)	0.71 (0.58–0.81)	0.009	0.91 (0.81–0.95)	0.74 (0.59–0.38)	0.035
Any failure						
Relapse, second malignancy or death	18	35		18	32	
2-year EFS (95% CI)	0.76 (0.64–0.85)	0.46 (0.39-0.59)	0.002	0.75 (0.62–0.84)	0.46 (0.32–0.59)	0.009
Relapse						
Relapses	15	28		15	25	0.042
2-year CIR (95% CI)	0.20 (0.11-0.31)	0.45 (0.32–0.57)	0.012	0.22 (0.12-0.33)	0.44 (0.30-0.58)	

	Intenti	Intention-to-treat population			Modified as-treated population			
	TBI	СНС	p value	TBI	СНС	p value		
Non-leukaemia death								
Death in CR	3	7		3	7			
2-year TRM (95% CI)	0.04 (0.01-0.09)	0.09 (0.04-0.17)	0.18	0.04 (0.01-0.10)	0.09 (0.04-0.18)	0.18		

OS and EFS analyses used Kaplan-Meier methodology and the log-rank test. CIR estimates accounted for respective competing events and were compared using Gray's test. CHC = chemo-conditioning, CI = confidence interval, CIR = cumulative incidence of relapse, CR = complete remission, EFS = event-free survival, OS = overall survival, TBI = total body irradiation, and TRM = treatment-related mortality.

	Intention-to-treat population			Modified as-treated population		
	TBI	СНС	p value	TBI	СНС	p value
Relapse within 18 months						
Patients	43	34		40	30	
Death						
Deaths	9	12		9	10	
2-year OS (95% CI)	0.83 (0.68–0.92)	0.61 (0.40-0.77)	0.23	0.82 (0.66-0.91)	0.63 (0.40-0.79)	0.35
Any failure Relapse, second malignancy, or death/patients	13	18		13	16	
2-year EFS (95% CI)	0.67 (0.49–0.80)	0.37 (0.19-0.55)	0.049	0.65 (0.47-0.79)	0.34 (0.15-0.53)	0.069
Relapse						
Relapses/patients 2-year CIR (95% CI)	10 0.26 (0.13–0.41)	14 0.51 (0.30–0.69)	0.095	10 0.27 (0.13–0.43)	12 0.52 (0.29–0.71)	0.16
Non-leukaemia death						
Death in CR/patients	3	4		3	4	
2-year TRM (95% CI)	0.07 (0.02-0.18)	0.12 (0.04–0.26)	0.47	0.08 (0.02-0.18)	0.14 (0.04–0.29)	0.40

Relapse between >18–30 months						
Patients	42	45		37	44	
Death						
Deaths	0	10		0	9	
2-year OS (95% CI)	1.0	0.78 (0.59-0.89)	0.001	1.0	0.80 (0.61-0.91)	0.003
Any failure						
Relapse, second malignancy, or death	5	17		4	16	
2-year EFS (95% CI)	0.87 (0.68–0.95)	0.53 (0.34-0.69)	0.004	0.86 (0.65-0.94)	0.54 (0.35-0.70)	0.013
Relapse						
Relapses	3	14		4	13	0.063
2-year CIR (95% CI)	0.13 (0.04–0.28)	0.41 (0.24–0.58)	0.026	0.13 (0.14–0.30)	0.40 (0.22–0.57)	
Non-leukaemia death						
Death in CR	0	3		0	3	
2-year of TRM (95% CI)	0	0.06 (0.01-0.18)	0.097	0	0.06 (0.01-0.19)	0.10

OS and EFS analyses used Kaplan-Meier methodology and the log-rank test. CIR estimates accounted for respective competing events and were compared using Gray's test. CHC = chemo-conditioning, CI = confidence interval, CIR = cumulative incidence of relapse, CR = complete remission, EFS = event-free survival, OS = overall survival, TBI = total body irradiation, and TRM = treatment-related mortality.

				TBI						Busulfa	n-based	СНС						Treosul	fan-basec	І СНС		
	Eval.	Gra	ade 0	Gra	de 1–2	Grad	le 3–4	Eval.	G	rade 0	Gra	de 1–2	Gra	de 3–4	Eval.	G	rade 0	Gra	de 1–2		Grade 3–4	p value
		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%	
Reduced granulocytes	190	13	7%	7	4%	164	86%	93	4	4%	5	5%	84	90%	87	4	5%	3	3%	80	92%	0.77
Reduced haemoglobin	190	10	5%	27	14%	153	81%	95	3	3%	17	18%	75	79%	88	1	1%	12	14%	75	85%	0.52
Reduced leukocytes	190	10	5%	10	5%	170	89%	96	4	4%	7	7%	85	89%	88	3	3%	3	3%	82	93%	0.53
Reduced platelets	190	16	8%	3	2%	171	90%	96	4	4%	1	1%	91	95%	88	4	5%	2	2%	82	93%	0.33
Haemolysis	188	165	88%	8	4%	2	1%	95	91	96%	4	4%	0	0%	82	78	95%	1	1%	3	4%	0.11
Non-Haematologic toxicity	190	1	1%	26	14%	163	86%	96	3	3%	18	19%	75	78%	89	1	1%	13	15%	75	84%	0.25
Allergic reaction/ hypersensitivity (including drug fever)	177	148	84%	28	16%	1	1%	95	88	93%	7	7%	0	0%	82	62	76%	19	23%	1	1%	0.56
Cytokine release syndrome/ acute infusion reaction	188	160	85%	19	10%	1	1%	94	91	97%	2	2%	1	1%	82	71	87%	10	12%	1	1%	0.83
Haemophagocytic lymphohistiocytosis	188	174	93%	2	1%	0	0%	95	95	100%	0	0%	0	0%	79	76	96%	1	1%	2	3%	0.032
PTLD	188	179	95%	0	0%	1	1%	95	93	98%	2	2%	0	0%	84	77	92%	1	1%	6	7%	< 0.001
Serum sickness	188	175	93%	1	1%	0	0%	95	94	99%	1	1%	0	0%	81	78	96%	3	4%	0	0%	-
Arrhythmia	190	177	93%	5	3%	3	2%	95	90	95%	4	4%	1	1%	84	79	94%	2	2%	3	4%	0.43
Cardiac function	190	147	77%	4	2%	7	4%	83	81	98%	1	1%	1	1%	70	63	90%	5	7%	2	3%	0.40
DIC	188	179	95%	0	0%	0	0%	95	95	100%	0	0%	0	0%	81	77	95%	3	4%	1	1%	0.18
Thrombotic microangiopathy	188	175	93%	1	1%	4	2%	95	94	99%	1	1%	0	0%	82	78	95%	2	2%	2	2%	0.33
Acute vascular leak syndrome	188	168	89%	7	4%	5	3%	95	92	97%	0	0%	3	3%	84	79	94%	4	5%	1	1%	0.67
Thrombosis/embolism	188	175	93%	4	2%	0	0%	95	94	99%	1	1%	0	0%	85	85	100%	0	0%	0	0%	-
Changes in the skin	190	72	38%	114	60%	4	2%	96	40	42%	53	55%	3	3%	87	37	43%	42	48%	8	9%	0.018
Diarrhoea	189	59	31%	103	54%	24	13%	96	27	28%	55	57%	14	15%	88	21	24%	50	57%	17	19%	0.38
Vomiting	189	44	23%	119	63%	24	13%	96	28	29%	61	64%	7	7%	88	9	10%	61	69%	18	20%	0.030
Stomatitis	190	27	14%	39	21%	124	65%	95	27	28%	26	27%	42	44%	88	12	14%	27	31%	49	56%	0.003
Nausea	189	41	22%	75	40%	70	37%	95	29	31%	39	41%	27	28%	88	12	14%	44	50%	32	36%	0.29
Colitis	188	147	78%	25	13%	5	3%	95	69	73%	23	24%	3	3%	82	67	82%	12	15%	3	4%	0.94

Table S4. Toxicity to Day 100 by Conditioning Regimen and Grade in the Modified As-Treated Population.

				TBI						Busulfa	n-based	CHC						Treosul	fan-based	CHC		
	Eval.	Gra	ade 0	Gra	de 1–2	Gra	de 3–4	Eval.	G	rade 0	Gra	de 1–2	Gra	de 3–4	Eval.	G	rade 0	Gra	de 1–2		Grade 3–4	p value
		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%	
Ileus, gastrointestinal	188	174	93%	3	2%	3	2%	95	91	96%	2	2%	2	2%	83	78	94%	1	1%	4	5%	0.30
CNS haemorrhage	188	182	97%	0	0%	1	1%	95	95	100%	0	0%	0	0%	84	82	98%	2	2%	0	0%	0.61
Gastrointestinal haemorrhage	188	169	90%	10	5%	2	1%	95	88	93%	3	3%	4	4%	84	76	90%	6	7%	2	2%	0.25
Pulmonary haemorrhage	188	178	95%	2	1%	1	1%	95	93	98%	1	1%	1	1%	84	83	99%	1	1%	0	0%	0.64
Bladder haemorrhage	188	173	92%	7	4%	0	0%	95	87	92%	8	8%	0	0%	84	73	87%	10	12%	1	1%	0.19
Other haemorrhage	188	177	94%	2	1%	1	1%	95	90	95%	4	4%	1	1%	84	82	98%	1	1%	1	1%	0.84
Bilirubin	190	90	47%	79	42%	21	11%	96	44	46%	39	41%	13	14%	88	31	35%	45	51%	12	14%	0.76
Elevated ALT or AST	190	38	20%	105	55%	43	23%	94	23	24%	58	62%	13	14%	87	9	10%	63	72%	15	17%	0.15
VOD	185	175	95%	6	3%	4	2%	95	89	94%	3	3%	3	3%	86	78	91%	7	8%	1	1%	0.66
Liver dysfunction/failure (clinical)	188	171	91%	9	5%	0	0%	95	85	89%	9	9%	1	1%	81	76	94%	4	5%	1	1%	0.35
Pancreatitis	188	178	95%	2	1%	0	0%	95	89	94%	6	6%	0	0%	84	75	89%	9	11%	0	0%	-
Fever	190	21	11%	155	82%	14	7%	96	23	24%	68	71%	5	5%	88	10	11%	70	80%	8	9%	0.59
Infection	190	23	12%	96	51%	71	37%	96	24	25%	39	41%	33	34%	88	6	7%	25	28%	57	65%	< 0.0001
Osteonecrosis (avascular necrosis)	188	172	91%	4	2%	1	1%	94	93	99%	0	0%	1	1%	80	77	96%	3	4%	0	0%	0.65
Peripheral neurotoxicity	190	170	89%	16	8%	1	1%	96	90	94%	6	6%	0	0%	88	73	83%	10	11%	5	6%	0.002
Central neurotoxicity	190	174	92%	10	5%	3	2%	96	90	94%	3	3%	3	3%	86	80	93%	4	5%	2	2%	0.70
Leukoencephalopathy	190	154	81%	5	3%	0	0%	93	93	100%	0	0%	0	0%	61	57	93%	3	5%	1	2%	0.13
Encephalopathy	190	179	94%	2	1%	2	1%	95	95	100%	0	0%	0	0%	80	75	94%	2	3%	3	4%	0.096
Seizure	188	178	95%	2	1%	1	1%	95	92	97%	3	3%	0	0%	84	79	94%	4	5%	1	1%	0.57
Hypoxia	190	160	84%	3	2%	21	11%	93	78	84%	1	1%	14	15%	86	64	74%	7	8%	15	17%	0.37
Pneumonitis, pulmonary infiltrates	190	158	83%	10	5%	13	7%	91	78	86%	5	5%	8	9%	81	63	78%	9	11%	9	11%	0.57
ARDS	188	172	91%	3	2%	4	2%	92	88	96%	0	0%	4	4%	82	77	94%	0	0%	5	6%	0.28
Aspiration	188	177	94%	3	2%	0	0%	94	93	99%	1	1%	0	0%	83	78	94%	2	2%	3	4%	0.007
Atelectasis	188	174	93%	5	3%	0	0%	95	93	98%	2	2%	0	0%	81	79	98%	2	2%	0	0%	-
Creatinine	189	106	56%	78	41%	5	3%	96	51	53%	44	46%	1	1%	88	52	59%	34	39%	2	2%	0.67
Haematuria	190	136	72%	42	22%	3	2%	92	66	72%	23	25%	3	3%	82	54	66%	24	29%	4	5%	0.33

				TBI						Busulfa	n-based	СНС						Treosul	fan-based	СНС		
	Eval.	Eval. Grade 0 Grade 1–2			le 1–2	Grad	le 3–4	Eval.	Gr	ade 0	Gra	de 1–2	Gra	de 3–4	Eval.	Gr	ade 0	Gra	de 1–2		Grade 3–4	p value
		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%	
Proteinuria	190	140	74%	31	16%	0	0%	81	71	88%	10	12%	0	0%	74	51	69%	23	31%	0	0%	-

Terminology are National Cancer Institute Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events (CTCAE), version 3.0, terms modified to meet transplant-specific criteria for toxicity. ALT = alanine aminotransferase, ARDS = acute respiratory distress syndrome, AST = aspartate aminotransferase, CNS = central nervous system, DIC = diffuse intravascular coagulation, PTLD = post-transplant lymphoproliferative disease, VOD = veno-occlusive disease.

	TBI	Busulfan	Treosulfan
Treatment-related mortality	7	7	9
Infection fungal	2	1	
Infection viral	2	2	1
Infection viral + bacterial			3
Infection bacterial			1
Acute graft-versus-host disease	1		1
Chronic graft-versus-host disease	2	2	2
Bleeding		1	
Veno-occlusive disease		1	
Post-transplant lymphoproliferative disease			1

Table S5. Causes of Death Unrelated to Relapse in the Modified As-Treated Population.*

*In addition, one patient randomised to total body irradiation but who received treosulfan-based chemo-conditioning (i.e. protocol violation) had a main cause of death of haemophagocytic lymphohistiocytosis.

		TI	Intentio	on-to-treat p CH	oopulation HC	P value*	T	BI	Modi Busul	fied as-treated lfan	population Treos	ulfan	p value*
		n	%	n	%		n	%	n	%	n	%	
MSD	Total patients	54		55			52		34		19		
	Evaluable patients	51		53			49		34		18		
	0 or I	28	55%	35	66%		27	55%	24	71%	11	61%	
	П	12	24%	13	25%		12	24%	7	21%	5	28%	
	III or IV	11	22%	5	9%	0.086	10	20%	3	9%	2	11%	0.40
MD	Total patients	158		146			142		62		71		
	Evaluable patients	152		140			139		62		69		
	0 or I	99	65%	101	72%		88	63%	41	66%	56	81%	
	П	39	26%	26	19%		37	27%	16	26%	6	9%	
	III or IV	14	9%	13	9%	0.98	14	10%	5	8%	7	10%	0.89

Table S6. Incidence of Acute GvHD by Grade, Conditioning Regimen, and Donor Type.

*P value for Grade III/IV acute GvHD in the TBI versus CHC arm (chi-square test). aGvHD = acute graft-versus-host disease, MD = human leukocyte antigen (HLA)compatible (nine or 10 out of 10 allelic matches) related or unrelated matched donor, MRD = minimal residual disease, MSD = HLA-identical sibling donor, TBI = total body irradiation.

Table S7. Univariate evaluation of risk factors.

				Overall Survival				Ε	vent-Free Survival	
	n	Eval.	Deaths	2-year OS (95% CI)	p value (log-rank)	n	Eval.	Deaths	2-year OS (95% CI)	p value (log-rank)
Total	413	409	68	0.83 (0.78-0.87)		413	409	103	0.72 (0.67-0.77)	_
Sex (recipient)										
Male	267	264	40	0.85 (0.8–0.89)	0.21	267	264	57	0.77 (0.7–0.82)	0.016
Female	146	145	28	0.79 (0.7–0.86)		146	145	46	0.64 (0.54–0.72)	
Age										
4–6 years	56	55	10	0.82 (0.68–0.9)	0.065	56	55	12	0.77 (0.62–0.86)	0.38
>6–10 years	141	140	17	0.88 (0.8–0.93)		141	140	33	0.73 (0.64–0.81)	
>10-14 years	106	106	15	0.87 (0.77-0.92)		106	106	25	0.77 (0.66–0.85)	
>14 years	110	108	26	0.74 (0.63–0.82)		110	108	33	0.63 (0.52–0.73)	
Immunophenotype										
B-cell precursor	297	294	50	0.84 (0.79–0.88)	0.58	297	294	80	0.71 (0.64–0.76)	0.22
T-cell ALL	94	93	13	0.83 (0.72–0.9)		94	93	16	0.81 (0.7-0.88)	
Other	18	18	4	0.66 (0.31-0.87)		18	18	5	0.56 (0.22-0.8)	
MRD pre-HSCT*										
MRD- (PCR)	135	135	18	0.90 (0.83-0.94)	0.60	135	135	29	0.78 (0.69–0.85)	0.49
MRD+ (PCR)	132	132	24	0.81 (0.72–0.87)		132	132	36	0.70 (0.61-0.78)	
MRD- (flow cytometry)	57	57	9	0.80 (0.65-0.9)		57	57	12	0.75 (0.58–0.85)	
MRD+(flow cytometry	12	12	2	0.69 (0.16-0.93)		12	12	2	0.83 (0.48–0.96)	
Donor										
MSD	108	108	22	0.81 (0.71-0.88)	< 0.001	108	108	30	0.69 (0.58–0.77)	< 0.001
MD	299	297	43	0.85 (0.8–0.89)		299	297	69	0.75 (0.68–0.8)	
Remission status										
CR1	225	224	31	0.85 (0.79–0.9)	< 0.001	225	224	42	0.80 (0.73-0.85)	< 0.001
CR2	164	163	31	0.81 (0.73-0.87)		164	163	53	0.61 (0.52–0.69)	
CR3	18	18	3	0.89 (0.62–0.97)		18	18	4	0.89 (0.62–0.97)	
CR2 patients: type of relapse										

				Overall Survival				E	vent-Free Survival	
	n	Eval.	Deaths	2-year OS (95% CI)	p value (log-rank)	n	Eval.	Deaths	2-year OS (95% CI)	p value (log-rank)
Bone marrow isolated	111	110	22	0.81 (0.71–0.88)	0.93	111	110	37	0.60 (0.48–0.7)	0.80
Other isolated	14	14	2	0.85 (0.51-0.96)		14	14	5	0.62 (0.31-0.82)	
Combined	38	38	7	0.82 (0.63–0.92)		38	38	11	0.65 (0.44-0.8)	
CR2 patients: time of relapse										
<18 months	22	22	5	0.77 (0.53–0.9)	0.012	22	22	9	0.59 (0.36-0.76)	0.025
18–30 months	55	54	16	0.71 (0.54–0.83)		55	54	22	0.5 (0.33-0.65)	
>30 months	87	87	10	0.89 (0.78–0.95)		87	87	22	0.69 (0.56-0.79)	

*Defined as $>10^{-3}$ for flow cytometry and $>10^{-4}$ for PCR. For the univariate evaluation of risk factors, OS and EFS were estimated with Kaplan-Meier methodology and compared using the log-rank test. Two-year estimates and 95% CIs using log transformation are given. ALL = acute lymphoblastic leukaemia, CR1 = first complete remission (below 5% of morphological blasts in bone marrow; no active extramedullary disease), CR2 = second complete remission, CR3 = third complete remission, HSCT = haematopoietic stem cell transplantation, MD = human leukocyte antigen (HLA)-compatible (nine or 10 out of 10 allelic matches) related or unrelated matched donor, MRD = minimal residual disease, MSD = HLA-identical sibling donor, PCR = polymerase chain reaction, and TBI = total body irradiation.

			TBI				СНС		HR (CHC vs. TBI)	p value
	n	Eval.	Events	2-year OS (95% CI)	n	Eval.	Events	2-year OS (95% CI)	HR (95% CI)	p value	(Interaction)
Total	212	209	19	0.91 (0.86-0.95)	201	200	49	0.75 (0.67-0.81)	2.96 (1.74–5.03)	<0.001	
Sex (recipient)											
Male	145	143	12	0.93 (0.87–0.97)	122	121	28	0.76 (0.66–0.84)	2.94 (1.49–5.79)	0.002	0.96
Female	67	66	7	0.88 (0.75-0.94)	79	79	21	0.72 (0.59–0.82)	2.85 (121-6.71)	0.016	
Age											
4–6 years	34	33	5	0.85 (0.65-0.94)	22	22	5	0.77 (0.53-0.9)	1.54 (0.45–5.33)	0.49	0.039
>6–10 years	66	65	3	0.95 (0.86-0.98)	75	75	14	0.81 (0.69–0.89)	4.71 (1.35–16.41)	0.015	
>10-14 years	64	64	2	1	42	42	13	0.67 (0.48–0.8)	13.24 (2.96–59.24)	0.001	
>14 years	48	47	9	0.79 (0.61–0.89)	62	61	17	0.71 (0.56–0.82)	1.32 (0.59–2.96)	0.51	
Immunophenotype											
B-cell precursor	153	150	15	0.91 (0.84–0.95)	144	144	35	0.77 (0.68–0.84)	2.54 (1.39-4.65)	0.003	0.60
T-cell ALL	48	48	3	0.92 (0.77-0.97)	46	45	10	0.73 (0.55–0.85)	4.07 (1.12–14.78)	0.033	
Other	11	11	1	0.91 (0.51-0.99)	7	7	3	0.28 (0.01–0.7)	5.5 (0.57–53.28)	0.14	
MRD pre-HSCT*											
MRD- (PCR)	72	72	7	0.95 (0.86-0.98)	63	63	11	0.84 (0.7–0.92)	2.18 (0.84–5.63)	0.11	0.75
MRD+ (PCR)	61	61	5	0.90 (0.78-0.96)	71	71	19	0.73 (0.59–0.83)	3.76 (1.4–10.08)	0.009	
MRD- (flow cytometry)	32	32	2	0.93 (0.75-0.98)	25	25	7	0.65 (0.39-0.82)	4.9 (1.02–23.61)	0.047	
MRD+ (flow cytometry)	9	9	1	0.67 (0.05-0.95)	3	3	1	0.67 (0.05-0.95)	3 (0.19–47.96)	0.44	
Donor											
MSD	54	54	7	0.89 (0.75-0.95)	54	54	15	0.74 (0.58–0.84)	2.28 (0.93-5.59)	0.072	0.60
MD	156	155	12	0.92 (0.86-0.96)	143	142	31	0.77 (0.68–0.84)	3.06 (1.57-5.96)	0.001	
Remission status											
CR1	118	118	9	0.91 (0.83-0.95)	107	106	22	0.79 (0.68–0.86)	2.99 (1.38-6.5)	0.006	0.89
CR2	85	84	9	0.91 (0.82–0.96)	79	79	22	0.71 (0.58–0.81)	2.69 (1.24–5.84)	0.013	

Table S8. Sub-group Analyses of Overall Survival by Risk Factor and Conditioning Regimen (ITT Population).

			TBI				СНС		HR (CHC vs. TBI)	p value
	n	Eval.	Events	2-year OS (95% CI)	n	Eval.	Events	2-year OS (95% CI)	HR (95% CI)	p value	(Interaction)
CR3	7	7	1	1	11	11	2	0.82 (0.45-0.95)	1.86 (0.16–21.68)	0.62	
CR2 patients: type of relapse											
Bone marrow isolated	53	52	6	0.92 (0.8–0.97)	58	58	16	0.72 (0.56–0.83)	2.48 (0.97-6.34)	0.058	1.0
Other isolated	7	7	0		7	7	2				
Combined	24	24	3	0.87 (0.65-0.96)	14	14	4	0.68 (0.25-0.9)	2.51 (0.56–11.26)	0.23	
CR2 patients: time of relapse											
<18 months	16	16	2	0.88 (0.59-0.97)	6	6	3	0.50 (0.11-0.80)	4.46 (0.75–26.75)	0.10	0.50
18-30 months	27	26	7	0.80 (0.59-0.91)	28	28	9	0.63 (0.39–0.8)	1.16 (0.43–3.13)	0.77	
>30 months [†]	42	42	0	1	45	45	10	0.78 (0.59–0.89)	22.5 (1.1-442	0.041	

*Defined as $>10^{-3}$ for flow cytometry and $>10^{-4}$ for PCR. OS was estimated with Kaplan-Meier methodology. Two-year estimates and 95% CIs using log transformation are given. To explore potential interaction between conditioning type and these risk factors, subgroup analyses were performed, and the statistical significance of these interaction was explored with Cox regression (†using Firth correction). ALL = acute lymphoblastic leukaemia, CR1 = first complete remission (below 5% of morphological blasts in bone marrow; no active extramedullary disease), CR2 = second complete remission, CR3 = third complete remission, HSCT = haematopoietic stem cell transplantation, MD human leukocyte antigen (HLA)-compatible (nine or 10 out of 10 allelic matches) related or unrelated matched donor, MRD = minimal residual disease, MSD = HLA-identical sibling donor, OS = overall survival, PCR = polymerase chain reaction, and TBI = total body irradiation.

			TF	BI			СН	с	HR (CHC vs. TB	SI)	p value
	n	Eval.	Events	2-year EFS (95% CI)	n	Eval.	Events	2-year EFS (95% CI)	HR (95% CI)	p value	(Inter- action)
	212	209	31	0.86 (0.79-0.9)	201	200	72	0.58 (0.5-0.66)	2.79 (1.83-4.25)	<0.001	
Sex (recipient)											
Male	145	143	19	0.88 (0.81-0.93)	122	121	38	0.64 (0.54–0.73)	2.57 (1.48-4.46)	0.001	0.76
Female	67	66	12	0.81 (0.68–0.89)	79	79	34	0.48 (0.35–0.61)	2.95 (1.53-5.71)	0.001	
Age											
4–6 years	34	33	6	0.79 (0.58–0.90)	22	22	6	0.73 (0.49–0.87)	1.6 (0.52–4.97)	0.41	0.29
>6-10 years	66	65	7	0.90 (0.80-0.96)	75	75	26	0.58 (0.44–0.70)	4 (1.73–9.24)	0.001	
>10-14 years	64	64	8	0.91 (0.78–0.97)	42	42	17	0.55 (0.36-0.70)	4.45 (1.9–10.38)	0.001	
>14 years	48	47	10	0.77 (0.61–0.87)	62	61	23	0.55 (0.4–0.68)	1.78 (0.85–3.74)	0.13	
Immunophenotype											
B-cell precursor	153	150	26	0.84 (0.76–0.89)	144	144	54	0.58 (0.48-0.66)	2.42 (1.52–3.87)	0.000	0.45
T-cell ALL	48	48	4	0.90 (0.75-0.96)	46	45	12	0.71 (0.54–0.82)	3.69 (1.19–11.44)	0.024	
Other	11	11	1	0.91 (0.51-0.99)	7	7	4		9.58 (1.03-89.14)	0.047	
MRD pre-HSCT*											
MRD- (PCR)	72	72	11	0.88 (0.77-0.94)	63	63	18	0.66 (0.51-0.78)	2.21 (1.04-4.68)	0.039	0.75
MRD+ (PCR)	61	61	9	0.86 (0.73-0.93)	71	71	27	0.56 (0.42–0.68)	3.23 (1.51-6.88)	0.002	
MRD- (flow cytometry)	32	32	3	0.87 (0.62–0.96)	25	25	9	0.59 (0.33-0.77)	4.4 (1.19–16.27)	0.026	
MRD+ (flow cytometry)	9	9	1	0.89 (0.43-0.98)	3	3	1	0.67 (0.05–0.95)	3.67 (0.23-59.59)	0.36	
Donor											
MSD	54	54	10	0.81 (0.67-0.9)	54	54	20	0.57 (0.41–0.7)	2.17 (1.01-4.63)	0.046	0.58
MD	156	155	21	0.87 (0.8–0.92)	143	142	48	0.61 (0.51-0.7)	2.87 (1.72-4.8)	0.000	
Remission status											
CR1	118	118	11	0.91 (0.83-0.95)	107	106	31	0.67 (0.56–0.76)	3.56 (1.79–7.09)	0.000	0.28

 Table S9. Sub-group Analysis of Event-Free Survival by Risk Factor and Conditioning Regimen (ITT Population).

			TB	BI			СН	С	HR (CHC vs. TB	I)	p value
	n	Eval.	Events	2-year EFS (95% CI)	n	Eval.	Events	2-year EFS (95% CI)	HR (95% CI)	p value	(Inter- action)
CR2	85	84	18	0.76 (0.64–0.85)	79	79	35	0.46 (0.33-0.59)	2.36 (1.34-4.17)	0.003	
CR3	7	7	2		11	11	2	0.82 (0.45-0.95)	1.1 (0.15-8.35)	0.92	
CR2-patients: type of relapse											
Bone marrow isolated	53	52	11	0.77 (0.61–0.87)	58	58	26	0.45 (0.3–0.6)	2.49 (1.23-5.04)	0.011	0.65
Other isolated	7	7	2	0.69 (0.21-0.91)	7	7	3	0.57 (0.17-0.84)	1.3 (0.22–7.78)	0.78	
Combined	24	24	5	0.76 (0.49-0.9)	14	14	6	0.42 (0.11-0.71)	2.47 (0.74-8.19)	0.14	
CR2 patients: time of relapse											
<18 months	16	16	5	0.69 (0.4–0.86)	6	6	4	0.33 (0.05–0.68)	2.49 (0.67–9.32)	0.17	0.67
18-30 months	27	26	8	0.65 (0.41–0.82)	28	28	14	0.37 (0.16-0.57)	1.94 (0.81–4.63)	0.14	
>30 months	42	42	5	0.87 (0.68–0.95)	45	45	17	0.53 (0.34–0.69)	3.85 (1.42–10.45)	0.008	

*Defined as $>10^{-3}$ for flow cytometry and $>10^{-4}$ for PCR. EFS was estimated with Kaplan-Meier methodology and compared using the log-rank test. Two-year estimates and 95% CIs using log transformation are given. To explore potential interaction between conditioning type and these risk factors, subgroup analyses were performed, and the statistical significance of these interaction was explored with Cox regression. ALL = acute lymphoblastic leukaemia; CR1 = first complete remission (below 5% of morphological blasts in bone marrow; no active extramedullary disease), CR2 = second complete remission, CR3 = third complete remission, EFS = event-free survival, HSCT = haematopoietic stem cell transplantation, MD = human leukocyte antigen (HLA)-compatible (nine or 10 out of 10 allelic matches) related or unrelated matched donor, MRD = minimal residual disease, MSD = HLA-identical sibling donor, PCR = polymerase chain reaction, and TBI = total body irradiation.

References

- 1. Altman D, Machin D, Bryant T, Gardner M. Statistics with confidence: confidence intervals and statistical guidelines. 2 ed. E-book: BMJ Books; 2013.
- 2. Kaplan EL, Meier P. Nonparametric estimation from incomplete observations. J Am Stat Assoc 1958; 53(282): 457-81.
- 3. Mantel N. Evaluation of survival data and two new rank order statistics arising in its consideration. *Cancer Chemother Rep* 1966; **50**(3): 163–70.
- 4. Cox DR. Regression models and life-tables. J Royal Stat Soc Ser B 1972; 34(2): 187–220.
- 5. Heinze G, Schemper M. A solution to the problem of monotone likelihood in Cox regression. *Biometrics* 2001; 57(1): 114–9.
- 6. Gray RJ. A class of K-sample tests for comparing the cumulative incidence of a competing risk. Ann Stat 1988; 16: 1141–54.
- 7. Fine JP, Gray RJ. A Proportional hazards model for the subdistribution of a competing risk. J Am Stat Assoc 1999; 94(446): 496–509.
- 8. Schemper M, Smith TL. A note on quantifying follow-up in studies of failure time. Control Clin Trials 1996; 17(4): 343-6.